#### **CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA**

#### MINUTES OF THE CABINET

## HELD AT COUNCIL CHAMBER, GUILDHALL, SWANSEA ON THURSDAY, 16 MARCH 2017 AT 3.00 PM

**PRESENT**: Councillor R C Stewart (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s)Councillor(s)Councillor(s)M C ChildW EvansR Francis-Davies

J E C Harris D H Hopkins J A Raynor

C Richards

**Apologies for Absence** 

Councillor(s): A S Lewis and C E Lloyd

#### 161. DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea, the following interests were declared:

Councillor C Richards – Personal – Minute No. 183 – Local Authority Governor Appointments – Candidate known to me.

Councillor R Stewart – Personal – Minute No. 183 – Local Authority Governor Appointments – I know two of the people named in the report.

#### 162. **MINUTES.**

**RESOLVED** that the Minutes of the meeting(s) listed below be approved and signed as a correct record:

- 1. Cabinet held on 16 February, 2017; and
- 2. Special Cabinet held on 23 February, 2017.

#### 163. LEADER OF THE COUNCIL'S REPORT(S).

The Leader made no announcements but did refer to a supplementary document relating to minute no. 186 - FPR7 – The Kingsway Infrastructure Project which had been published and circulated as an addendum to the report.

#### 164. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME.

A number of questions were asked by one member of the public. The Leader responded accordingly.

#### 165. **COUNCILLORS' QUESTION TIME.**

No questions were asked.

## 166. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY FEEDBACK - SWANSEA CITY CENTRE REGENERATION – DELIVERY AND FUNDING STRATEGY. (VERBAL)

The Leader of the Council stated that Councillor M H Jones had submitted apologies as she was unable to attend the meeting.

Councillor S E Crouch stated that the Scrutiny Programme Committee had asked her to highlight the concerns of the Committee regarding the lack of the Accommodation Strategy.

The Leader of Council referred to the letter sent to the Cabinet Member regarding the pre-decision scrutiny which was noted by Members, along with the comments made by Councillor S E Crouch.

## 167. SWANSEA CITY CENTRE REGENERATION – DELIVERY AND FUNDING STRATEGY.

The Cabinet Member for Enterprise, Development and Regeneration submitted a report which sought agreement to proceed to the next stages of City Centre regeneration and confirm funding in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules.

#### **RESOLVED** that:

- 1. The financial implications as outlined within the report be approved;
- An overarching economic regeneration assessment to underpin any decisions to invest in the capital delivery of projects including a skills assessment to underpin delivery be approved;
- 3. Officers be authorised to approach Welsh Government to request that Swansea City Centre is a designated TIF area;
- 4. The necessary annual capital and revenue funding required to enable delivery of the projects be agreed;
- 5. The interdependencies for other aligned schemes being developed for Castle Square and the Kingsway infrastructure be noted.

## 168. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY FEEDBACK - CASTLE SQUARE DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC REALM OPPORTUNITIES. (VERBAL)

The Leader of the Council stated that Councillor M H Jones had submitted apologies as she was unable to attend the meeting.

Councillor S E Crouch stated that the Scrutiny Programme Committee had asked her to highlight the concerns of the Committee regarding proposals for Castle Square as set out in the letter from Councillor M H Jones.

The Leader of Council referred to the letter sent to the Cabinet Member regarding the pre-decision scrutiny which was noted by Members.

#### 169. CASTLE SQUARE DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC REALM OPPORTUNITY.

The Cabinet Member for Enterprise, Development and Regeneration presented the context and appraisal of options to support the enhancement and potential development opportunity within part of Castle Square and on the representations received following the publication of a formal Public Open Space Notice.

#### **RESOLVED** that:

- 1. The key responses following the Public Open Space Notice be noted;
- The preparation of an options appraisal and brief for the site in alignment with the wider City Centre development be supported with a report back to Cabinet prior to any site marketing.

# 170. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY FEEDBACK - FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES COMMISSIONING REVIEW - OPTIONS APPRAISAL REPORT (GATEWAY 2) FOR THE UNDER 11'S CLUSTER OF THE COMMISSIONING REVIEW. (VERBAL).

The Leader of the Council stated that Councillor P R Hood-Williams had submitted apologies as he was unable to attend the meeting.

The Leader of Council referred to the letter sent to the Cabinet Member regarding the pre-decision scrutiny which was noted by Members.

## 171. FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES COMMISSIONING REVIEW – OPTIONS APPRAISAL REPORT (GATEWAY 2) FOR THE UNDER 11'S CLUSTER OF THE COMMISSIONING REVIEW.

The Cabinet Member for Services for Children and Young People presented the Options Appraisal which outlined the process, findings and set out New Models of Delivery for the Under 11s Cluster of the Family Support Commissioning Review.

**RESOLVED** that the preferred option 3 outlined in section 3 of the report as a measure to improve performance, make the service more robust and make efficiencies is appropriate to take forward to implementation.

## 172. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY FEEDBACK - FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES COMMISSIONING REVIEW - OPTIONS APPRAISAL REPORT (GATEWAY 2) FOR THE OVER 11'S CLUSTER OF THE COMMISSIONING REVIEW. (VERBAL).

The Leader of the Council stated that Councillor P R Hood-Williams had submitted apologies as he was unable to attend the meeting.

The Leader of Council referred to the letter sent to the Cabinet Member regarding the pre-decision scrutiny which was noted by Members.

## 173. FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES COMMISSIONING REVIEW - OPTIONS APPRAISAL REPORT (GATEWAY 2) FOR THE OVER 11'S CLUSTER OF THE COMMISSIONING REVIEW.

The Cabinet Member for Services for Children and Young People presented the Options Appraisal which outlined the process, findings and set out New Models of Delivery for the Over 11s Cluster of the Family Support Commissioning Review.

**RESOLVED** that the preferred option 2 outlined in section 3 of the report as a measure to improve performance, make the service more robust and make efficiencies is appropriate to take forward to implementation.

#### 174. QUARTER 3 2016/17 PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT.

The Leader of the Council presented the Corporate and Service Performance for Quarter 3 2016-2017.

**RESOLVED** that the performance results are noted and reviewed to help inform executive decisions on resource allocation and, where relevant, corrective actions to manage and improve performance and efficiency in delivering national and local priorities.

#### 175. WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES & STATEMENT 2017/18.

The Leader of the Council presented the well-being objectives and well-being statement 2017/18 for the Council as required by the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

#### **RESOLVED** that Cabinet proposed to Council:

- 1. That the Council's 5 key priorities expressed in its current Corporate Plan 2016/17 are carried forward into 2017/18 as the Council's Well-Being Objectives;
- 2. That the Council's Well-Being Statement for 2017/18 be approved;
- 3. The work currently underway to review the Council's Well-Being Objectives continues after the local government elections with the newly elected Administration into 2017/18 with a new Corporate Plan published as soon as practicably possible.

#### 176. CAM NESA - EUROPEAN SOCIAL FUND - GRANT ACCEPTANCE.

The Cabinet Member for Education submitted a report which sought approval to participate in the Cam Nesa project and see through the necessary stages to implementation.

#### **RESOLVED** that:

- 1. the progress achieved by the project in securing full approval from the Welsh European Funding Officer (WEFO) be noted;
- 2. the Head of Financial Services, acting as the Authorising Contact for the Project, be authorised to accept the Grand Offer made by WEFO;

- 3. regular reports on progress are made to the External Funding Panel;
- 4. that a Service Level Agreement be entered into with Pembrokeshire Council and authority be given to the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to enter into any appropriate legal documentation with any provisions necessary to protect the Council's interests.

#### 177. FREE CHILDCARE FOR 3 AND 4 YEAR OLDS PILOT.

The Cabinet Members for Children and Young People and Education presented a report which sought approval of the target areas for the Free Childcare Pilot.

**RESOLVED** that the proposals for the target areas for the first year of the Free Childcare Pilot as listed under Sections 2.9, 2.10 and 2.11 be approved.

## 178. HOUSING GENERAL FUND (HGF) DISABLED FACILITIES AND IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROGRAMME 2017/18.

The Leader of the Council presented a report which detailed the Disabled Facilities and Improvement Grant Programme and sought approval to include schemes in the 2017/18 Capital Programme.

**RESOLVED** that the Disabled Facilities and Improvement Grant Programme as detailed, including its financial implications, are approved to include schemes in the 2017/18 Capital Budget.

#### 179. ANNUAL REVIEW OF CHARGES (TO APPLY 2017/18) - SOCIAL SERVICES.

The Cabinet Members for Adults & Vulnerable People and Services for Children and Young People presented a report which sought to review the Charges (Social Services), to establish an annual review and consultation process and to consider amendments to the list of charges to apply in 2017/18.

#### **RESOLVED** that:

- 1. The process of undertaking an annual review of charges for social care is accepted and aligned with the Council's annual budget setting process in future years:
- 2. That the proposed inflationary uplift to social care charges is applied for 2017/18.

## 180. REPORT ON THE WESTERN BAY PRINCIPLES OF PREVENTION FRAMEWORK AND THE PREVENTION STRATEGY FOR SWANSEA.

The Cabinet Member for Adults & Vulnerable People presented the Western Bay principles of Prevention Framework and City and County of Swansea's Prevention Strategy delivering our priorities for prevention and early intervention services for people in Swansea.

#### **RESOLVED** that:

- 1. The Western Bay Principles of Prevention Framework and the Prevention Strategy for Swansea be approved subject to wider consultation;
- 2. The remit of consultation as set out in paragraph 3.3 be approved.

## 181. <u>FPR7 - CAPITAL ALLOCATION TO HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS</u> 2017-18.

The Cabinet Member for Environment & Transportation presented the Capital Work Programme for highway infrastructure assets.

**RESOLVED** that the proposed allocations, together with the Financial Implications set out in Appendix A, are approved and included in the Capital Programme.

#### 182. CAPITAL MAINTENANCE REPORT 2017/18.

The Leader of the Council presented a report which sought to agree the schemes to be funded through the Capital Maintenance Programme.

#### **RESOLVED** that Cabinet:

- 1. Approved the proposed capital maintenance schemes as listed in Appendix A;
- 2. Authorised the financial implications identified in Appendix B to be included in the Capital Programme.

#### 183. LOCAL AUTHORITY GOVERNOR APPOINTMENTS.

The Cabinet Member for Education presented a report which sought approval of the nominations submitted to fill the Local Authority Governor vacancies in School Governing Bodies.

**RESOLVED** that the following nominations be approved as recommended by the Local Authority Governor Appointments Panel:

1.	Brynhyfryd Primary School	Ms Isobel Norris
2.	Portmead Primary School	Mr David Mackerras
3.	Dylan Thomas Community School	Mr Adrian Rees
4.	Gowerton Comprehensive School	Ms Estelle Hart
5.	YGG Llwynderw	Mrs Junnine Thomas- Walters

#### 184. TACKLING POVERTY SCRUTINY INQUIRY.

Councillor Sybil Crouch, Governor of the Tackling Poverty Scrutiny Inquiry Panel, presented the findings, conclusions and recommendations of the Panel's Inquiry into Tackling Poverty.

**RESOLVED** that the Cabinet Member for Anti-Poverty and Communities report back to Cabinet with a written response to the scrutiny recommendations and proposed action(s) for Cabinet decision.

#### 185. A REVISED TACKLING POVERTY STRATEGY FOR SWANSEA.

The Cabinet Member for Anti-Poverty and Communities presented the revised tackling poverty strategy for Swansea, setting out the City and County's approach in tackling poverty for people in Swansea.

**RESOLVED** that the revised draft tackling poverty strategy for Swansea be approved subject to wider consultation.

#### 186. **FPR7 – THE KINGSWAY INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT.**

The Cabinet Members for Enterprise, Development and Regeneration & Environment & Transportation presented a report which sought approval to agree a final scheme following public consultation and to add the project to the Capital Programme.

#### **RESOLVED** that:

- 1. the public consultation be noted;
- 2. the proposed project and its Financial Implications be approved and added to the capital programme;
- the Director of Place in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Enterprise, Development & Regeneration, and the Cabinet Member for Environment and Transportation be delegated authority to make minor amendments to the proposed project provided they do not lead to a material change in the scheme or the costs.

#### 187. **EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC.**

Cabinet were requested to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the item(s) of business identified in the recommendations to the report(s) on the grounds that it / they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as set out in the exclusion paragraph of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007 relevant to the items of business set out in the report(s).

Cabinet considered the Public Interest Test in deciding whether to exclude the public from the meeting for the item of business where the Public Interest Test was relevant as set out in the report.

**RESOLVED** that the public be excluded for the following item(s) of business.

#### (CLOSED SESSION)

#### 188. ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY TO FACILITATE CITY CENTRE REGENERATION.

The Cabinet Member for Enterprise, Development & Regeneration presented a report which sought approval to commit and authorise schemes as per the Capital Programme or to include new schemes in the Capital Programme.

**RESOLVED** that the recommendations, as detailed in the report, be approved.

## 189. FPR7 AMENDMENT – VIBRANT AND VIABLE PLACES PROGRAMME, SWANSEA CITY CENTRE.

The Cabinet Member for Enterprise, Development & Regeneration presented a report which sought approval of the revised budget within the Capital Programme.

**RESOLVED** that the recommendation, as detailed in the report, be approved.

The meeting ended at 4.43 pm

CHAIR

Published: 17 March 2017